Christiansburg Planning Commission
Minutes of February 2, 2015

Present: Matthew J. Beasley (arrived at 7:06 pm)
Ann Carter
Harry Collins
David Franusich
Steve Huppert
Jennifer D. Sowers, Vice-Chairperson
Joe Powers
Craig Moore, Chairperson
Nichole Hair, Secretary Nom-veting

Absent: None

Staff/Visitors: Randy Wingfield, staff
Sara Morgan, staff
Cindy Wells Disney, Montgomery County Planning Commission
Kevin Conner, Gay & Neel, Inc.

Chairperson Moore called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Christiansburg Town
Hall at 100 E. Main Street, Christiansburg, Virginia.

Public Comment.

Chairperson Moore opened the floor for public comment. There were no public
comments. Chairperson Moore closed the floor for public comment.

Approval of meeting minutes for December 15, 2014.

Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion. Commissioner Franusich made a
motion to approve the Planning Commission meeting minutes. Commissioner
Sowers seconded the motion, which passed 7-0.

Planning Commission public hearing on a Conditional Use Permit request by
Community Housing Partners for office use at 446 Depot Street, N.E. (tax parcels 496 —
((A)) — 46, 497 — ((A)) = 17,18, 19, 20, and 21) in the MU-1: Residential-Limited
Business District.

Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion. Kevin Conner, Gay & Neel, explained
Community Housing Partners used to be based in Downtown Cambria area and
have since expanded to the 446 Depot Street property. Mr. Conner added the 446
Depot Street property used to be the Tekoa Boys Home and currently houses the
administrative offices for Community Housing Partners. Mr. Conner stated the
architecture and construction division is located in the old cafeteria/dining hall.



February 2, 2015 p. 2

Planning Commission public hearing on a Conditional Use Permit request by

Community Housing Partners for office use at 446 Depot Street, N.E. (tax parcels 496 —

((A)) — 46, 497 — ((A)) — 17, 18, 19, 20, and 21) in the MU-1: Residential-Limited

Business District - (continued).

Mr. Conner explained Community Housing Partners previously obtained a
Conditional Use Permit for office space in the mixed used district. Mr. Conner added
Community Housing Partners has outgrown the current buildings, which is good for
both the company and Christiansburg. Mr. Conner detailed the location of two
buildings that are used for storage, one being the older home on the property. Mr.
Conner stated the house is in disrepair on the inside.

Mr. Conner reviewed a concept plan but the applicant has requested the concept
plan not be tied to the Conditional Use Permit. Mr. Conner explained the plan is to
reconfigure the entrances and parking from Depot Street. Mr. Conner stated this
would give a sense of arrival to the property. Mr. Conner added the buildings would
face a courtyard and the parking would be reconfigured because the site can be
confusing for first time visitors. Mr. Conner added the new building would have an
approximately 3,500 square feet footprint with basement storage and two floors for
office.

Commissioner Collins inquired about the current parking owned by Community
Housing Partners. Mr. Conner showed the parking lot on the aerial. Commissioner
Carter asked if the parking would become part of the new layout. Mr. Conner
explained that the parking would be reconfigured.

Chairperson Moore opened the floor for public comment. There were no public
comments. Chairperson Moore closed the public hearing.

Chairperson Moore explained that there are no proposed conditions and the
applicant has requested the concept plan not be part of the request.

Ms. Hair detailed the conditions from the former Conditional Use Permit.
Commissioner Franusich asked if the current Conditional Use Permit covers what
they are requesting. Ms. Hair explained condition 2 of the former Conditional Use
Permit restricts additions or new buildings. Condition 2 states “This permit is valid
for the use of the existing buildings only. Any new building construction or additions
for office use shall require Conditional Use Permit application.”

Chairperson Moore asked if the new Conditional Use Permit would replace the
existing permit. Ms. Hair stated that she would consider the new permit to replace
the original. Commissioner Powers asked if staff is proposing the original
Conditional Use Permit conditions. Ms. Hair suggested using the first condition of the
original Conditional Use Permit; “This permit is valid for Community Housing
Partners and its subsidiaries only and is not transferrable”. Commissioner Powers
asked if staff is proposing the original Conditional Use Permit conditions.



February 2, 2015 p. 3

Planning Commission public hearing on a Conditional Use Permit request by
Community Housing Partners for office use at 446 Depot Street, N.E. (tax parcels 496 —
((A)) — 46, 497 — ((A)) — 17,18, 19, 20, and 21) in the MU-1: Residential-Limited
Business District - (continued).

Ms. Hair suggested using the first condition of the original Conditional Use Permit;
“This permit is valid for Community Housing Partners and its subsidiaries only and is
not transferrable”. Ms. Hair added Town staff has met with the applicant regarding
their site and Community Housing Partners will be required to meet ail regulations
through the site plan review process. Commissioner Carter noted that the water
issues down the hill will be addressed through the site plan. Commissioner
Franusich stated he believes Community Housing Partners is a good neighbor.

Mr. Conner noted that the applicant has gone through a number of concept plans
working with their Architecture Department. Mr. Conner added Community Housing
Partners has met with their board will have an input meeting to select the concept
plan shown. Mr. Conner does not believe Community Housing Partners will change
their mind about the proposed concept plan.

Chairperson Moore asked about the pervious pavers currently being used on the
property. Mr. Conner explained there are pervious concrete, open cell concrete
pavers, and dry link pavers on the property. Mr. Conner confirmed the applicant will
be incorporating those types of parking designs in moving forward. Mr. Conner
stated the use of pervious pavement will be incorporated for stormwater purposes.
Mr. Conner added there currently is bioretention on the property. Mr. Conner added
the site was developed before stormwater regulations included addressing the
amount of stormwater. Mr. Conner added any redevelopment will go above and
beyond what is on the property at present time.

Mr. Conner showed the existing parking and house in comparison to the new
concept on the concept plan. He pointed out pedestrian and vehicle space.
Commissioner Collins asked about the walkways with the pedestrian space. Mr.
Conner stated the applicant is calling the space a pedestrian plaza. Commissioner
Powers noted it is tying the three buildings together.

Commissioner Franusich noted Community Housing Partners likes to use pervious
surfaces for driveways in their projects. He added their projects were well done.

Commissioner Powers asked why the applicant does not want to tie the request to
concept plan. Mr. Conner explained the board may change their mind about the
location of a building and the request is for office use not the layout of the site.
Chairperson Moore added the ordinances will protect the development of the site if
the Planning Commission feels office is a permitted use for the site.

Chairperson Moore stated the request should include the first condition from the
original request while the second condition would be stricken.

Commissioner Franusich proposed a condition to include the number of buildings in.



February 2, 2015 p. 4

Planning Commission public hearing on a Conditional Use Permit request by
Community Housing Partners for office use at 446 Depot Street, N.E. (tax parcels 496 —
((A)) — 46, 497 — ((A)) — 17, 18, 19, 20, and 21) in the MU-1: Residential-Limited
Business District - (continued).

Chairperson Moore suggested the permit would be good for the existing structures
and one additional building. Ms. Hair suggested limiting the square footage.
Chairperson Moore noted the number of buildings allowed is limited due to the
stormwater and topography of the land. Mr. Conner noted there is not much
developable land outside of the land surrounding the existing buildings due to the
topography. Chairperson Moore believes the applicant’s development would be an
improvement to the area and would hate to be restrictive when they are adding
value. Commissioners noted the site limitations on development. Mr. Conner noted
the development will be restricted on height and setbacks.

Commissioners Powers, Beasley, and Carter agreed with a condition to restrict
transferring the Conditional Use Permit. Commissioner Carter noted Community
Housing Partners has a good track record in the community.

Commissioner Beasley made a motion to approve the Conditional Use Permit with
one condition. Commissioner Collins seconded the motion, which passed 8-0.

Planning Commission public hearing on a Conditional Use Permit request by the Town
of Christiansburg for a farmers market located on the Hickok Street right-of-way from
East Main Street to College Street in the B-2 Central Business District.

Chairperson Moore introduced the request. Assistant Town Manager Randy
Wingfield presented to the Planning Commission. Mr. Wingdfield stated the Town
has been working to locate a farmers market downtown. Mr. Wingfield added the
Town is currently requesting to use the Hickok Street right-of-way until a location can
be acquired for a permanent structure. Mr. Wingdfield stated a farmers market
committee has been formed and has been meeting on a regular basis. Mr. Windfield
presented the farmers market mission and draft regulations for the farmers market.
Mr. Wingfield stated the committee is expected to vote on the draft regulations at the
committee’s next meeting.

Mr. Wingfield detailed a diagram showing an angled layout for vendors. Mr.
Wingfield stated the spaces are nine feet wide; however, the spaces will probably
end up being ten feet wide. Mr. Windfield stated this would accommodate 15 vendor
spaces. Mr. Wingfield stated there are three layouts for the farmers market
committee to consider; however, the angled layout is preferred. Mr. Wingdfield added
the other layouts will be kept in case more vendors need to be added later on. Mr.
Wingfield noted having 10-12 vendors would be considered successful.

Mr. Wingfield added that the Town would like to be flexible with locations in case
there are more vendors than anticipated. Mr. Wingfield stated the Town has reached
out to potential vendors and has received interest from that effort.



February 2, 2015 p. 5

Planning Commission public hearing on a Conditional Use Permit request by the Town
of Christiansburg for a farmers market located on the Hickok Street right-of-way from
East Main Street to College Street in the B-2 Central Business District - (continued).

Mr. Wingfield stated the farmers market will be open on Thursdays in order to not
compete with from other markets. Mr. Wingfield added the first year will be operated
on Thursdays from 3-7pm. Commissioner Collins asked if the topic on the dates and
time were closed. Mr. Wingfield stated he does not believe it is completely closed.

Mr. Wingfield stated the start date of April is fairly certain and it would run through
October. Mr. Wingfield stated the cost to lease a space would be $40/month or $180
if you sign up for the whole year. Mr. Wingdfield added drop in spaces would be
available at $15/space; however, priority would be given to those with month or year-
long commitments.

Mr. Wingfield stated marketing has been a focus for the farmers’ market committee.
Mr. Wingfield added a couple of different groups are working on a market logo. Mr.
Wingfield added the Town is looking for a more permanent location; however, the
goal is to get the market off the ground. Mr. Wingfield stated this will allow the Town
to address issues in the first year of operation.

Chairperson Moore opened the floor for public comment. There were no public
comments. Chairperson Moore closed the public hearing.

Commissioner Collins stated he does not believe Thursdays are the best approach.
Commissioner Collins stated he would like to see the farmers market go head to
head with Blacksburg. Mr. Wingfield explained the farmers market committee does
not want to go head to head with other markets because this will limit vendor
availability. Mr. Wingfield added Blacksburg has a waiting list for their farmers
market and the committee is looking into obtaining that list. Commissioner Collins
stated he does not want to have a weekday night market and not have anyone show
up. Mr. Wingfield stated he does believe in the long term the Town will have a
Saturday market. Mr. Wingfield added a long term goal is to develop a permanent
location with stalls.

Commissioner Collins asked if tents will be used for the vendor spaces. Mr.
Wingfield explained the vendors are responsible for their own setup. Mr. Wingfield
stated the vendors can have the back of a truck or a tent.

Commissioner Huppert noted that Town Council has approved $10,000 next year for
farmers market operations. Commissioner Huppert stated there will the opportunity
for bands or food trucks to set up for the Thursday night farmers market.
Commissioner Collins stated having this type of entertainment would help a lot.
Commissioner Huppert added the hope is to make the farmers market a special
event.



February 2, 2015 p. 6

Planning Commission public hearing on a Conditional Use Permit request by the Town
of Christiansburg for a farmers market located on the Hickok Street right-of-way from
East Main Street to College Street in the B-2 Central Business District - (continued).

Mr. Wingfield noted there has been a discussion about what product would be
available and the conclusion was agricultural based products. Mr. Windfield stated
these products could be locally grown produce or vegetables, soap, eggs, etc.

Commissioner Sowers asked the distance tied to the term local. Mr. Wingdfield stated
the farmers market will allow a 100 mile radius to be considered local. Mr. Wingfield
added this topic was highly debated as Blacksburg uses a 50 mile radius. Mr.
Wingfield stated there is a general consensus the committee would like to cast a
bigger net that in the Town's first year of operating a farmers market. Mr. Wingfield
added the Virginia Department of Consumer Services defined local as a 100 mile
radius.

Commissioner Collins asked how the earmarked $10,000 would be used. Mr.
Wingfield stated half of the money will be used for a market manager salary. Mr.
Wingfield added the market manager position will be on a contract basis. Mr.
Wingfield stated there are several knowledgeable people who have expressed
interest in this position. Mr. Wingfield stated the market manager will be facilitating
management of the market and visiting farms for inspection. Commissioner Collins
asked if others, like Blacksburg, require this. Mr. Wingfield confirmed they do.

Mr. Wingfield noted that the Town Attorney recommended the establishment of a
nonprofit 501-©-3 to manage the market for liability reasons.

Commissioner Huppert asked Mr. Wingdfield to explain what the adjacent buildings
are on the layout. Mr. Wingfield pointed out the veterinary clinic and the church.

Commissioner Powers asked Ms. Hair if the proposed farmers market meets the
definition in the Zoning Ordinance. Ms. Hair confirmed the request meet the
definition.

Chairperson Moore closed the public hearing.

Chairperson Moore noted the Planning Commissioners have the market mission
statement in front of them.

Commissioner Huppert stated the Town has been working towards a farmers market
for a number of years. Commissioner Huppert added the residents have been
looking forward to this. Commissioner Huppert stated he believes this is a good
start. Commissioner Huppert added the market would be beneficial for the Town in
the long run. Chairperson Moore stated other Conditional Use Permits have typically
been tied to the applicant.



February 2, 2015 p. 7

Planning Commission public hearing on a Conditional Use Permit request by the Town
of Christiansburg for a farmers market located on the Hickok Street right-of-way from
East Main Street to College Street in the B-2 Central Business District - (continued).

Chairperson inquired what would happen if the nonprofit 501 © 3 were to manage
the farmers market. Mr. Wingfield added the market board would be appointed by
Town Council. Commissioner Huppert stated he believes he speaks for Council.

Commissioner Powers suggested including the Town of Christiansburg and the
nonprofit in a condition. Commissioner Collins asked what the 501©3 would be
named. Mr. Wingfield stated it could be something similar to “Friends of
Christiansburg Farmers Market.” Mr. Wingfield added if the Town relinquishes
control to the board, the Town would still own property. Mr. Wingdfield stated if the
location of the farmers’ market was to change, a new Conditional Use Permit would
be required.

Commissioner Collins inquired about insurance requirements. Mr. Wingfield stated
the Town has liability insurance of $2 million. Mr. Wingfield added the attorney
recommended the market vendors be required to have $1 million insurance.
Commissioner Collins asked if other localities, like Blacksburg, do the same. Mr.
Wingfield stated Blacksburg requires the insurance and this is fairly common
regulation.

Commissioner Carter asked if there were any restrictions that should be placed.
Commissioner Powers stated he believes the Planning Commission can trust those
in charge of the farmers market.

Mr. Conner asked about Town Council having to vote on closing the street for events
that have alcohol sales and inquired if alcohol would be sold at the farmers’ market.
Mr. Wingfield stated only wineries would be able to sell, but this could change in the
future. Mr. Conner stated he brought this up in case it became an issue further down
the road. Commissioner Franusich noted alcohol sales would be covered by ABC
laws. Ms. Hair added that Town Council would not have to vote on closing the street
for the farmers’ market.

Mr. Wingfield noted the draft regulations include a provision of a special exemption
that could be approved by the market committee in regards to the 100 mile radius
(i.e. fruit or seafood).

Ms. Hair read the proposed condition.
1. The Conditional Use Permit is for the Town of Christiansburg and/or a Town
designated nonprofit, and is nontransferable.



February 2, 2015p. 8

Planning Commission public hearing on a Conditional Use Permit request by the Town
of Christiansburg for a farmers market located on the Hickok Street right-of-way from
East Main Street to College Street in the B-2 Central Business District - (continued).

Commissioner Powers asked about the previous farmers’ market conditions. Ms.
Hair noted that parking and noise were addressed in those conditions. That permit
was for a market operating on the weekend and adjoined residential properties.

Commissioner Collins asked the planned hours of operation. Mr. Wingfield stated
the market plans to be open 3-7 p.m. Mr. Windfield added the vendors would be
allowed to set up one hour prior to the market and one hour after the market to break
down. Commissioner Sowers stated the Planning Commission should not restrict the
hours in case the market is successful and hours need to be extended. Mr. Wingfield
stated the hours of operation have been discussed and flexibility would be needed
depending on how the market was going. Commissioner Huppert noted during the
summer, it does not get dark until 9:00 p.m. Commissioner Powers added it will be
self-limiting because the Town will not be closing the street seven days a week. The
Planning Commission decided not to restrict the time of the market.

Commissioner Powers noted that the noise ordinance would be in effect. Ms. Hair
added being in the Downtown District, the farmers’ market does not impact as many
residential properties. Ms. Hair added those who live Downtown are familiar with the
noise and street closures from other events held Downtown.

Commissioner Collins asked when the market would start. Commissioner Sowers
stated it will start in April.

Chairperson Moore proposed reviewing the permit in one year. Commissioner Carter
noted the review may be needed for changes to be made, depending on how well
the market does. The Planning Commission review in a year was added as a second
condition. Ms. Hair suggested reviewing the request 12 months from the start of the
market. This was affirmed by Planning Commissioners.

Commissioner Collins asked Mr. Wingfield what conditions he would like to see. Mr.
Wingfield stated the market could be self-policed through the committee and Town
Council would have control.

Commissioner Collins made a motion to approve the Conditional Use Permit with
two conditions. Commissioner Franusich seconded the motion, which passed 8-0.

Discussion of proposed Chapter 42 “Zoning” changes.

Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion. Ms. Hair stated the Development
Subcommittee has drafted proposed changes to the Zoning Ordinance and the
committee would like input regarding those changes before requesting public
hearings be set.



February 2, 2015p. 9

Discussion of proposed Chapter 42 “Zoning” changes — (continued).

Ms. Hair reviewed the proposed changes including changes to the definitions of
accessory apartment and building height.

Commissioner Powers added that the main change for the accessory building is the
“licensed caregiver.” Ms. Hair noted recent conferences have discussed aging in
place and this definition change provides the option to age in a home with a licensed
caregiver on the property. Ms. Hair added that the “licensed caregiver” language
makes the definition more enforceable. Ms. Hair stated this would prevent the
property owner from claiming the person is a caregiver rather than just having an
apartment.

Ms. Hair reviewed the changes to conditional zoning, which currently prohibits cash
proffers and off-site improvements. Ms. Hair stated the proposed change would
allow developers to proffer off-site construction (i.e. street or sidewalk
improvements).

Mr. Hair stated a provision to all handicap ramps within a setback is being added to
numerous Zoning districts.

Ms. Hair stated a provision is proposed to require duplexes to have a variation of
three feet with the front fagade, similar to the requirements for townhomes. Ms. Hair
indicated this will provide the distinction of the two individual dwelling units.

Ms. Hair stated a provision is being proposed to require sidewalks when the principal
structure on a business property is being renovated or expanded. Currently in our
B-3 District all new development requires sidewalks.

Chairperson Moore requested clarification regarding the three foot variation for the
duplexes. Ms. Hair and Commissioner Powers explained that it says at least three
feet.

Ms. Hair stated she will request public hearings be set by Town Council. There were
no objections by Planning Commissioners.

Chairperson Moore thanked the Development Subcommittee for their hard work.

Other Business.

Ms. Hair stated that the Comprehensive Plan Subcommittee will hold a
Neighborhood Planning meeting on March 19. Ms. Hair added Neighborhood
Planning was featured in the recent Town newsletter that went out in the recent
utility billing. Ms. Hair added staff has received feedback from this outreach. Ms.
Hair added the Comprehensive Plan Subcommittee will meet next Wednesday,
February 11 at 8:30 a.m. to prepare for the March meeting.



February 2, 2015 p. 10

Other Business — (continued).

Commissioner Franusich asked if the next meeting Planning Commission will be on
a Tuesday. Ms. Hair stated there are currently no public hearings scheduled and
decisions were made tonight, so the Planning Commission may not need to hold a
meeting on February 17.

Commissioner Powers asked for clarification on the Development Subcommittee
meetings. Ms. Hair stated the Development Subcommittee meets the fourth
Wednesday of the month at 8:30 a.m. Ms. Hair added the Comprehensive Plan
Subcommittee meetings have been move to the morning as well.

There being no more business, Chairperson Moore adjourned the meeting at 7:49 p.m.

a@% {M/"“ YUy | )< v’

CraigM Jbre O‘f‘nalrperson Nichole Hair, Secretary

Non-Voting



